CHAPTER IX

JOHN CARROLL UNTVERSITY SEISMOLOGICAL OBSERVATORY

CLEVELAND, OHIO

By Henry F. Birkenhaver, S. J.

Joha Carroll University's Seismological Observa-

tory ranks with the finest Jesuit-operated stations in the
sountry. VYetb withou% the tremendoung sacrifice, energy, and
- gpivit of one mang.there might never have been a John Carroll
Observatory: there might never even have been the natlon-wide
network of Jesult stations that today renders such invaluable
and unfailing service to secience, That one man, recognized
as the father of Jesult seismology in the United States, is
the Reverend Trederick L. 6denbach9 S, J, (1857-1933).

. The slender, studious priest begen his work at
. (leveland's St. Ignatius College (now John Carroll University)
in 1893, a year when most people scoffed at the 1dea of a
machine vecording an earthquake thousands of miles eway. And,
indeed, at this early date, Father Odenbach did profess
greater interest in the sﬁﬁdy of meteorology and astronomy
than in veproduction and diagnosis of faraway earth tremors.
Yet within 1ittle more than & half dozen years he was adding
a new piece of equipment to his laboratory, equipment destined

to bring feme to his name and place members of the Soclety of

Jesus foremost among the country's seismologleal experis.
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The instrument, designed and built by himself, was Cleveland's
first selsmograph,

During the yeér.1900a Father Odenbach experimented
with his firet seismograph. In his f£ifth floor laboratoxy
at old St., Ignatius College, Carroll and Jersey Streets, he
get up & horizontal glass vod Qith 8 Hengler=Zollner type -
of suspersion, Thé glass rod was wound with & bare wire,
When the rod would swing in response to the horizontal con-
ponent of a seismic wave, the wire would touch & contact
and & bell rang. This was hig fivst alarm selsmoscope,

A second instrument was a vertical pendulum hung
in a shaft and equipped with a heavy weight., Four carbon
piles were mounted horizontally in a clrcle around the base
of the pendulum 90° epart, Movement of the pendulum in a
northerly direction would compress the northern pile and
release the tension on the southern pile. A simple ampli-
fier gave him an indieation of the direction of movemenﬁs
Four parallel cirvcults were led to his observatory in the
tower of the college where they operated & r@eordiné
mechanism,

Meanwhile, Father Odenbach had given considerable
attention to meteorology. The first meteorological observe-
tions had been made in 1896, "Two years later, the Smith-
gonian Institﬁ@ion placed at Father Odenbach's disposal the
universel meteorograph which had been built by the famous
agtronomer, Father Angelo Seechi, S. J., for the Paris

Exposition and which had there won & prize. It was purchased

5




.
.

L
-

. .
.

'S METEOROGRAPH

FATHER SECCHI




for the Smithsonian Institution; bub the Secretary, Professor
Langley, foresaw no possibility of putting the Secchl meteor-
ograph to practical use in Washington., At the suggestion of
the present Director of the Weather Bureau, Professor C. F,
Marvin, 1t was offered to Father Odenbach, In three days
after ite arrival in Cleveland, Fathew Odenbasch had the
large and very complicated instrument assembled. Before
long, it wag veady %o record 21l the principal elements of
the weather. Graduslly he expanded the meteorological
equipment. In 1899, he devised and built the firet cerauno-
graph, It was an adaptation of the Branly coherer to the
detection and continuous recording of the static distur-
bances which precede and accompany thunderstorms. The name
ceraunograph which is now in general use wvas suggested by
Father James A, Kleist, S, J.; who was then a colleague of
‘Father Odenbach on the faculty of John Carroll University, "l
In 1908, Father Odenbach conceived the plan of co-
ordinating the Jesult colleges in the country into a unified
group of seismological observatories. He had previously
been approached by Professor Willis L. Moore, Chief of the
United States Weather Bureau, With a proposal to aeveldp a
ginilay ofganization in the fleld of meteovology, This
plan had not succeeded but with the appearance on the

market of the small Wiechert seismograph at a very reasonable

1
"Memorial to the Reverend Frederick L., Odenbach, S, J." by
Reverend Jemes B. Macelwane, S. J., Trensactions,
American Geophysical Union (1933) p. 317
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price, Father Odenbach felt that the Jesuit éolleges could
pool thelr efforts in reporting seismological phenomens,

On February 2, 1909, he addressed a létter to all of the
Jesuit colleges in the United States and Canada. In this
letter he called their attention to the scientific advantages
of such an organization. This letter has been reproduced in

the Bulletin of the Seismological Society of Americe.,?

So favorably were Father Odenbach's suggestions
recelved that before the winter of the following year,
slxteen Wiechert eighty kilogram horizontel component instiu-
ments had been lmported from Germany and were in operation at
the various member stations in the first Jesuit seismological
gervice, The first new station to function regularly wag the
Regls College station at Denver which installed its seismo-
graph In August of that year, Although this initial effort
at a unified seismological service.was doomed to but one
short year's exi%ﬁeﬁceg the ideas implanted by the illustrious
Jesuit professor were never forgotten,

Meanwhile, FPather Odenbach continued his own earth-
gquake observations, A facelimile of the postcard on which he
presented his date is published in this'volume@ Likewise ave
introduced sample pages from his seismological bulletins of
1915 end 1916, It may be of intevest to éhe reader to lmow

that these pages were found in the John Carroll arvehives with

2 T ,
"Jegult Selsmological Stations in the United States and Canadas
A Retrospect" by J, B. Macelwsne, S. J., Bulletin of
the Seismological Society of America, Vol, 16 (1926)

pp. 187-188




the reverse of ench page used as leaves in Father‘ﬁd@mba@h@@
metebfological noteboolk, |

In the year thet followed decline of the firs®
seismological service, Tather Odenbach, through his cease-
less research and observation, maintained his position a8 &
leading geophysicist, By veason of his friendly manner and
his facillty at éon?@rting technical aspects of his work
iﬁto und@raﬁanéahleﬂ everyday lengusge, he was o prominent
publiec figur@@ Olevelanders came ﬁé asgociate his name
with most anything of a sclentifle nature end their fre-

- guent excursions to his bulging laborvatory left them with
e dual eppreciation of the priest as e sclentlst and ag o
friend, Newspaper accounts of his aétive daye during the
1920%s reveal his relemtles@ pursuit of lmowledge bub, more
often, his warm personality that ba&é 0 outlast even his
reputation as a selsmologist.

During the latter half of the twenties selsmo-
grams p?o&aée& by the Cleveland station became less and
less accurate due to the increase of traffic end indus-
trial disturbences in the neighborhood, WNeedless to say,
Father Odenbach's diseppointment and ffugtration grew
with every heevy truck that rumbled by the college end 1%
wes indeed with great Joy that he veceived the news that
John Carrell was soon %o build a‘n@W'univeraity'plan%,in
one‘of Cleveland's quiet r@giaential guburbs@. Immediate

plans were leld for a meteoyalogiéal end seiesmologlcal

9
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1916

OBSERVATORY

8T. IGNATIUS COLLEGE
Cleveland, O., .U, ‘S. A,

Frederick L. Qdenbach, s.j.

Director.,
Latitude 412 29° 08" N Wiechert Horiz, 80 Kg.
Longitude 810 42° 297" W Magnification 80.
Altitude 206 m. Period 7 sec.
Geological formation Dawmping; 5:1,
Glacial drift 105 ft. Time: Greenwich 0-24

(Time: By wireloss from Washingten)

Observatery Press




1916

Date | Phase | Time Period | Amp. Remarks
H M 8 § L]
Nov. 21 [ NP | 02425
8 28 00
L 29 00
M 29 05 15 25
P 115 00
Phase doubiful
EP | 02437 ;
8 28 33
L 29 40
M 31 48 15 18
F 116 00
Dee. },ﬁ 18 j; g(l) 4 | Covered by microseisms
12 Ee 21 183 25
M 19 24 ] Lol
¥ 30 00
31 Ne 12 36 00
L 39 00
M 40 05 o 2
1) 37 00 | %Cover‘ed hy microseisms
Ee 12 40 00
M 43 36 13 2
r H4 00

Sample Page of Father Odenbach's Seismological Bulletin
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gtation Yo be incorporated in the over-all bullding scheme.

In the swmmer of 1932, with workk on the new uni-
verslty bulldings nearing the final stages, Pather Odenbach
eould content himself no 1qnger with a location that dally
brought incveased interference to his dellcate recording
devices, Uven at the advanced age of seventy-five, he
84111 relished a selentific adventure and so with keen antie-
cipation he diswmentled his equipment, packed 1t carefully
and @ffeetea‘an sarly transfer to the site of the yet nn-
finished building which was to house his lsboratory and
office,

But this new ocecupation with its exposure to all
types of weather was to prove fatal to the once robust
priest. The university's building program, once meking
steady progress, now came to a premature halt, Living in
his windowless brick room proved too mﬁch for the aged
selentist and, with his health failing rapldly, he wae
obliged to return to the Jesult community aﬁ St. Ignatiuvs
High Sehool in the early Qinter@ Shortly thereafter, on
March 15, 1933, in the seventy-sixzth year of age, he passed
avay, His only vegret, Lf regret we may term 1% was to die
before completion of the John Carroll Ualversity where he

had expected to aceomplish so much, His death closed forty

~ years of contlanuous service as divector of the Cleveleand

Observatory,

Father Odenbach was born in Roechester, New York,




in 1857, and e&ueated.at Ixseten, Holland and Canisiug College

Buffalo. He made higheyr studies in FEngland where he wag or-
dained in 1891, Trom 1893 to his desth he served on the
faculty of John Carroll University.

In the summer of 1933, Father Joseph 5. Joliat, S.d,,
vas appointed director of the Angelo Secehi Seismological Ob=
gervatory ag it was then called, -All of Fathei Odenbachis
equipment, including his eighty kilogram Wlechert selsmo=
graph, had been brought out to the present site of John
Carroll in University Heights. The meteorological equip-
ment was stored in the tower end the selemograph wes mounted -
in the basement at the base of the tower,

Father Odenbach had designed an underground vaulb
beneath the eampus one hundred feet southwest of the Admin-
istration Building. fn the vault he had expected to mount a
large seismograph with & boom about eight feet long. Seepuge
from the ground wabter continually kept coming in, a fael
which hag rendered it impossible to use this vault,

Constiuction on the new John Carroll University
buildings was resumed in 1935 with the reopening of classes
in the new building in October of that year. In 1936,
several members‘of the faculty moved %o Bernet Hall, By the
beginning of 1937, Father Joliat had installed the Wiechert
in the basement of the Administration Building and continuous
recording was begun., Among the early shocks recorded were

the Anne, Ohio, earthquakes of March 2 and Marech 9, 1937,
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Rev. Henry P, Birkenhauer, S.J.
Director, 1947 -

Reverend Jogeph S. Jollat, 8. J.
Director, 19%% - 19Uy

Doctor Edward J, Walter
Assistant to the Director

1947 -




Recorder of the

Vieible Indicator

View of the John Carroll Bulldings Used
in the Second Wederal Bank Display

of the

Leeds
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in 1945, Reverend Thomas T, Donnelly, S. J., Rector
of John Carroll University, approached the members of the
Louis D, Besumont Trust and the Cleveland Foundation to
obtain granis for the purchase of new equipment, Grants
totaling $3000,00 were supplied in 1946, In the spring of
that year, Father Joliat helped to excavate a new room in
part of the unfinished basement of Rodman Hall, Excavetion
of this room was completed ln the summer of 1946, at which
time two long-period horizontel component seismographs and
a short-period vertical Seiaﬁograph'were ordered from the
V. F. Sprengnether Company in St, Louls.

Dr. Bdward J, Welter joined the staff of the station
as assistont director in the summer of 1946, In July, 1947,
Father Henry F, Bivkenbauer, S. J., came to relieve Father
Joliat as director of the observatory,

A concrete pler was poured during that month and
the new Sprengnether instruments were installed in August®
“and September, 1O47. An aadifional grant from the Cleveland
FPoundation wade possible the purchase in December, 1947, of
two shaftmp@ri@d Sprengnether horizontal selemographs, With
the beginning of the operation of the Sprengnethers, the
Wiechert was retived from active service. The station
bulletin has been published monthly since September, 1ok,

Besides the routine publication of its monthly
hulletins énd the research in microseismns and other problems

incidental %0 the operstion of the station, the staff has
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developed several types of vibration measuring instruments and
mokes 148 sexrvices available for such measurements on a consul {-
ing basgis. The present ptaff includes, besldes Fathers Birken-
haver and Joliat and Doctor Walter, Mr. Hdward F. CGayone,
technician, and’Misg Jeanne Carrabine, secretary.

The Jesult Selsmological Association met at John
Carroll University in 1948 Jointly with the Bastern Section
of the Seismological Society of Ameri@a for technical sessions
and separately for husiness sessgions and en excursion to points
of geological interest in Lake Trie,  The delegates proceeded
by automobile slong the 0ld beaches of the glacial lokes
Maumee, Whititlesey and Werren from Gleveland to Sandusky and
acrosg the Sendusky Bay through the gypsum region to Pért
Clinton. There they boarded a chartered boat for Put-in-Bay
on South Bass Island where they visited Crystal Cave and the
glacial striations in the exposed Base Islands dolomite of
Silurian age. After lunch the party again boarded their
chartered boaf and transferred to Kelley's Island to see the
giant glacial grooves cut in doiomite at the north end of the
island. On the veturn voyage the party had a good view of
the limestone cliffs of Marblehead and Oatawba Island as they
gkiﬁted the north shove of the Ottews County peninsula, They
left the boat at Port CGlinton and arvived in Uleveland in the
evenings

In June, 1950, John Carvoll University sponsored a
civie celebration of the Golden Jubilee of Father Odenbach@s

first efforte in seismology in Cleveland,




Father Joliat in Crystel (ave, Put-ln-Bay,
Lake Erie '

Fathers Macelwane, Stechschulte and
" Iynch examining glaclal grooves at
Put=1n-Bay, Lake Erle

Fathers Iynch, Sohon, Macelwane and Stechschulte
In the glant grooves at the north end of Kelleyls
Island, Lake Zrie

Fathers Birkenhauer, Sohon and Remiresz
examining glacial grooves at Put=in-Bay,
Lake Erie
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